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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: This is the

          3  Consumer Affairs Committee. We are looking forward

          4  to being joined by some of our other colleagues.

          5  Council Member Charles Barron is with us from

          6  Brooklyn, and today we are going to be doing

          7  oversight of the Business Integrity Commission, and

          8  I know that Chairman Maldonado has been kind enough

          9  to join us. We have quite a few questions, and then

         10  on a separate issue, we will be voting on the

         11  sidewalk cafe legislation today, when I get a quorum

         12  here to vote.

         13                 In fact, maybe the best thing for me

         14  to do -- there is a gentleman that wanted to

         15  testify, I'll make some suggestions about that, so

         16  maybe we should open that up and hear that first,

         17  because I don't want to have this Commissioner in

         18  the middle of something and then have him come up.

         19  So, if you think that would work out best, if that's

         20  all right with you, Commissioner, just for a few

         21  seconds?

         22                 Robert Brill wanted to come and

         23  testify about the sidewalk cafe. Please take a seat

         24  there. I told him that it was a little late to be

         25  doing this. He had spoken at the Subcommittee
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          2  hearings, but since that portion of it is in this

          3  Committee we wanted to hear from him, and most

          4  importantly, he's a constituent of mine. So, we want

          5  to give him an opportunity to get his glasses and

          6  tell us what's on his mind.

          7                 MR. BRILL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          8  and I'll be brief.

          9                 Let me just say at that outset that

         10  last week, I believe, if not the week before, the

         11  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchise, had a hearing

         12  on a zoning piece of the sidewalk cafe legislation.

         13                 I testified at that time about

         14  certain elements of their proposal, and they had

         15  recommended that I at least bring this to your

         16  attention, and let me do so.

         17                 The problem is the -- two problems:

         18  One, at least one piece of street furniture, public

         19  pay telephones, and perhaps other telecommunications

         20  pieces of street furniture, have rules and

         21  regulations about siting in relation to outdoor

         22  cafes.

         23                 And, it seemed to me very important

         24  that that department have notice so it can bring its

         25  franchisees at least into the process where they
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          2  have pending applications, dueling (sic)

          3  applications or other issues that that Department

          4  and its franchisees have to consider.

          5                 So, in light of that I would suggest

          6  that in your Intro. 294, and I'm looking at what is

          7  the second page of what I printed out on the web,

          8  which would be in paragraph E, section 5A, where you

          9  have a litany of different departments in which

         10  there will be some type of notice given that you

         11  include the Department of Information Technology and

         12  Telecommunications. You see, you have City Planning,

         13  Department of Environmental Protection and

         14  Landmarks, and I think it would be advisable also

         15  for you to include the New York City Department of

         16  Information Technology and Telecommunications.

         17                 Let me just say as a note that one of

         18  your former colleagues on the Council, Walter

         19  McCaffrey, when he was chairman of the Subcommittee

         20  on Zoning and Franchises, identified to the then

         21  City Administration of Mayor Giuliani, the problem

         22  of dueling permit applications and permits and there

         23  is no resolution, and I realize that may be beyond

         24  the pegrate (phonetic) of this Committee, but

         25  nonetheless, since you're dealing with this issue
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          2  here about siting and how the different departments

          3  should balance it, you should be cognizant that

          4  there is this problem of dueling applications for

          5  street furniture handled by DOT, DoITT, Department

          6  of Consumer Affairs and others.

          7                 So, at least by having some degree of

          8  notice, okay, of a pending petition be presented to

          9  that Department, at least that Department, DoITT,

         10  can factor it in with its telecommunications

         11  franchisees.

         12                 In Section 6E where you have a number

         13  of different processes involving the community

         14  board, again, in the event that the Department, if

         15  you include DoITT, but in general, for parties that

         16  have a stake under their permits or contracts with

         17  the City, to have notice of pending applications for

         18  either a sidewalk cafe, or perhaps more importantly

         19  the expansion of a sidewalk cafe, which again I'm

         20  not sure whether that is the petition referred to,

         21  but there should be some type of public notice of

         22  this that is available easily on the web, and you

         23  don't have to rely upon either an attorney or an

         24  expediter to monitor the filing of a petition, to

         25  have prompt notice of it, so that you can prepare to

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  make submissions to either the Department in the

          3  statute or if you're a franchisee, your department,

          4  whoever administers to you, or the community board.

          5                 So, it would be ideal if at the

          6  petition stage, that petition could be somehow

          7  notified to the public, and even just a scrib on the

          8  web, which they could then go down if they were so

          9  inclined to the Department to get a copy of, and in

         10  this regard I would note that Intro. 119-A, which

         11  deals with government reports and the filing on the

         12  web, which is the piece of legislation I think may

         13  come before you for vote in the full Council at the

         14  next stated meeting or the one thereafter, sort of

         15  suggest a trend about putting things on the web,

         16  contemporaneous with their filing, which will

         17  ultimately, maybe not this year, but in years hence,

         18  be a savings to the City, because they won't have to

         19  have paper records, everything will be electronic.

         20                 But let me propose then at the

         21  minimum in Section 6E in the statute where you have

         22  the 45-day notice provision for community boards, I

         23  would suggest two pieces of language of a very

         24  minimal nature, and I'll follow this up with a

         25  letter, so if you want the specific language you can
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          2  have it.

          3                 In the second, or the first clause of

          4  6E small Roman i, where you have City Planning

          5  Commission, I would add the language "in said

          6  community board's website." Most of the community

          7  boards I think have websites now, and hence where

          8  they notify the public of the petition, they should

          9  also do that via the web, and it should be express.

         10  It should be their obligation to do.

         11                 I think they would meet it, I think

         12  this would be coming standard procedure for them.

         13                 In addition, and perhaps more

         14  importantly, where they exercise small Roman ii of

         15  that same paragraph, which is their waiver by

         16  written statement, which they have to do at a public

         17  hearing, and then they have the notification to the

         18  Council and thereafter to I think the Department,

         19  they, too, should put that on the web,

         20  contemporaneously, and it should be their burden.

         21                 So, it can't just be notice at a

         22  public hearing that only certain members of the

         23  community even know about. It should be something

         24  available on the web, therefore, I would recommend

         25  the following language:
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          2                 In that statement you have the

          3  language recommendation on such petition, and I

          4  would add, and at such time, meaning when they do

          5  that waiver, then your language continues. What I

          6  would do is, at the end of the sentence where it

          7  says "to the Council" I would add a comma and say,

          8  "and place such written statement on said community

          9  board's website." And that would be, to me, at least

         10  bare bones notice to those interested, as to an

         11  event of this magnitude of the petition, and

         12  particularly those who do business with the City,

         13  the impact on them so they know, well, we have to be

         14  ready with our Department to deal with it, or ready

         15  with the Council.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Brill. Would you identify yourself for the record,

         19  please?

         20                 MR. BRILL: Sure. My name is Robert

         21  Brill, I'm an attorney here in New York City. I

         22  represent different types of telecommunications

         23  interests in the City, pay phone service providers,

         24  as well as broadband providers, and long distance

         25  providers.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. I'm

          3  sure, the Commissioner is here, they will look into

          4  what you're saying, as will the Council.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. BRILL: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you,

          8  Commissioner Maldonado. I appreciate your patience.

          9                 We are now moving to discussing

         10  oversight of the Business Integrity Commission, and

         11  I appreciate that we had scheduled this hearing last

         12  week and accommodated your schedule and our own

         13  schedule, so it's nice to have you here.

         14                 Please identify yourself for the

         15  record.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes, Jose

         17  Maldonado, Chairman of the Business Integrity

         18  Commission, and I'm joined by members of the

         19  Commission, staff, as well.

         20                 Good morning, Chairman Reed, and

         21  Council members. Thank you for this opportunity to

         22  testify before the Consumer Affairs Committee.

         23                 This morning I would like to discuss

         24  the work done by the Business Integrity Commission

         25  and the ways we are changing the agency to make it
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          2  more responsive to the business as we regulate,

          3  while strengthening our regulatory and oversight

          4  functions.

          5                 BIC is a business regulatory agency

          6  empowered to license and oversee companies engaged

          7  in the trade waste industry, the businesses and the

          8  City's seven public wholesale markets and the

          9  companies that apply for licenses to operate ship

         10  board gambling cruises.

         11                 Creating a new agency that integrates

         12  functions, formerly the responsibility of other

         13  government bodies, involves the creation of new

         14  institutional cultures.

         15                 My goal in this regard are for the

         16  Business Integrity Commission to be an agency that

         17  is both mindful of the need of the business

         18  community, and at the same time an agency which

         19  carries out its investigatory, investigative and

         20  regulatory duties in a vigorous manner.

         21                 I believe that we have made good

         22  progress toward these objectives in the half year

         23  BIC has been in existence, since July 1 of 2002.

         24                 When I became a Chairman, I found an

         25  agency that had become preoccupied with pursuing one
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          2  aspect of the Commission to the exclusion of others.

          3                 The Trade Waste Commission did

          4  excellent work in cleaning up the commercial carting

          5  industry, in getting the bad players out of the

          6  Trade Waste business, and breaking the cartel's grip

          7  on the industry, which had for a long time, kept new

          8  companies from entering the New York City market and

          9  squelch competition.

         10                 But the Trade Waste Commission was

         11  fully engaged in the law enforcement part of the job

         12  and did not pursue its regulatory functions or build

         13  the sort of administrative organization that could

         14  efficiently deal with a multifaceted vetting

         15  process.

         16                 As a consequence, there were carting

         17  companies that routinely flouted Commission rules

         18  and requirements, and a large backlog of

         19  applications developed.

         20                 In previous testimony, I described

         21  part of the backlog, the 62 applications from

         22  carters who had operated under the aegis of the

         23  Department of Consumer Affairs before passage of

         24  Local Law 42 in 1996.

         25                 These companies were operating in
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          2  grandfather status, pending resolution of their

          3  application.

          4                 I felt that it was important to deal

          5  with these cases, particularly as some of the

          6  companies were run by people who had been part of

          7  the old cartel.

          8                 We moved expeditiously to resolve

          9  these cases, we established stringent, yet

         10  reasonable standards, for evaluating the information

         11  turned up by our investigators and attorneys, and

         12  worked to resolve outstanding issues.

         13                 Some of the applications were denied,

         14  some of the companies were granted permission to

         15  sell their operations, some agreed to accept a

         16  monitorship and a few were granted a license

         17  outright.

         18                 Our work on the DCA grandfathered

         19  cases became our model for dealing with applications

         20  in our other licensing categories.

         21                 We streamlined our procedures with a

         22  view to moving applications through the process,

         23  while vetting them thoroughly, but in a way that was

         24  tailored to the particulars of each case.

         25                 Let me give you just one example. The
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          2  Trade Waste Commission used to depose the principals

          3  of key employees of every company that applied for a

          4  trade waste license. It was done as a matter of

          5  routine. We now hold depositions only when there are

          6  substantive questions about the person's activities,

          7  background or criminal connections.

          8                 This single change decreased the time

          9  it takes to decide on an application and has lowered

         10  our cost. Depositions are both time consuming and

         11  expensive.

         12                 Another example of a small change

         13  that yielded substantial results in the way our

         14  attorneys write up their licensing recommendations,

         15  as you know, lawyers are trained to write, and write

         16  some more. It was not surprising then to find that

         17  our legal staff's recommendations were lengthy

         18  documents.

         19                 I had the lawyers focus their

         20  memoranda on the essentials of each case, which made

         21  them shorter and more focused.

         22                 We did not stop there. We

         23  systematically rethought the vetting process and

         24  found ways to speed the review of applications. Our

         25  turn-around time is now faster, which benefits
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          2  businesses applying for a license or a registration.

          3                 We also inherited backlogs in other

          4  Trade Waste categories we register. We are whittling

          5  away at them to the best of our ability and I am

          6  confident that we will have the situation under

          7  control within an acceptable time frame.

          8                 Turning now to BIC's trade waste

          9  enforcement activities where we have also made

         10  changes. At the end of August I formed a Trade Waste

         11  Regulatory Enforcement Unit out of existing

         12  resources.

         13                 The unit's mandate is to enforce our

         14  operational and administrative regulations.

         15                 Operational rules include such things

         16  as the requirement that licensees register all of

         17  their trust with the Commission and display our

         18  registration plates on each one.

         19                 That a company's name be clearly

         20  displayed on every truck.

         21                 That carting companies provide

         22  customers with 14 days written notice before raising

         23  their charge or dropping a customer; and that

         24  companies maintain books and records.

         25                 Administrative regulations require
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          2  companies to keep us apprised of changes in

          3  ownership and management and require companies to

          4  submit customer registers, and a financial statement

          5  to the Commission on a timely basis.

          6                 The regulations exist to ensure that

          7  companies once licensed will be operating in a

          8  manner consistent with good business practices, and

          9  will deal with customers in an acceptable manner.

         10                 The Trade Waste Enforcement Unit

         11  holds them to those standards.

         12                 The unit has gotten off to a quick

         13  start, and though constituted of only six people,

         14  including the director, has made its presence felt.

         15                 Many more companies now submit

         16  required information on time and several companies

         17  have learned that operating without a commission

         18  license or registration, as required by law, will

         19  cost them dearly in fines.

         20                 Because there are people who never

         21  learn that we mean what me say, the unit has become

         22  a source of revenue which we anticipate will

         23  increase once the unit hits its stride.

         24                 There are a number of active criminal

         25  investigations and carting companies underway, these
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          2  are joint efforts between BIC, several prosecutorial

          3  offices, and the New York Police Department.

          4                 But overseeing an industry is about

          5  more than investigation and enforcement. I believe

          6  that BIC should also have an ongoing dialogue with

          7  those we regulate and even with their customers.

          8                 To that end, I recently created a

          9  trade waste advisory committee, it's members include

         10  representatives of several carting companies, a

         11  couple of trade waste brokers, and several

         12  representatives of businesses that require

         13  commercial carting.

         14                 The idea here is to have a forum of

         15  open discussion of issues affecting carters, such as

         16  initiatives or regulations BIC may be considering,

         17  and those that affect the carters' customers.

         18                 The Advisory Committee is emblematic

         19  of our efforts to be business friendly, while

         20  continuing to pursue our oversight responsibilities.

         21                 BIC's other major area of

         22  responsibility is in the City's public wholesale

         23  markets. On July 1 we assumed oversight of the

         24  market businesses of the Department of Small

         25  Business Services.

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 Our Markets Investigation Unit is

          3  vetting registration renewal applications from

          4  businesses in the Fulton Fish Market and the Hunts

          5  Point Produce Market.

          6                 We anticipate completing the renewal

          7  review in the next several months.

          8                 After that, the unit will be vetting

          9  applications from the businesses in the Hunts Point

         10  Meat Market and will then begin registering

         11  businesses in the remaining markets.

         12                 The City's other public wholesale

         13  markets are the Gansevoort Meat Market, the Bronx

         14  Terminal Market, the Hunts Point Meat Market, the

         15  Brooklyn Terminal Market, and the Brooklyn Wholesale

         16  Meat Market.

         17                 The unit is also engaged in the

         18  monitoring the behavior of the public wholesale

         19  markets and is conducting several criminal

         20  investigations in conjunction with the Police

         21  Department, the DAs' offices, and federal

         22  prosecutors.

         23                 We also have a Markets Enforcement

         24  Unit which has been reorganized since coming over

         25  from DSBS. Its inspectors help maintain order in the
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          2  Fulton Fish Market, and issue citations for a

          3  variety of violations.

          4                 I anticipate that in the future the

          5  responsibilities will expand to include enforcement

          6  in the other public wholesale markets.

          7                 In this area, too, we are looking for

          8  efficiencies. We are undertaking a review of the

          9  market registration process and have already begun

         10  standardizing the applications to make them more

         11  uniform and so easier to deal with.

         12                 This is a brief tour of BIC's

         13  activities of the licensing and regulation. I'm

         14  satisfied that we are making good progress toward

         15  creating an effective and efficient regulatory body

         16  that is also responsive to the needs of the business

         17  community.

         18                 That concludes my prepared testimony

         19  and I will be pleased to answer any questions that

         20  you and the Committee members may have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         22  much, Commissioner.

         23                 You know we've been working with your

         24  office, and up until now, particularly since the

         25  Business Integrity Commission has been reconstituted
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          2  it has not been a part of the MMR. And so,

          3  therefore, there has not been sort of a standard of

          4  questions, and I know we've worked with your office

          5  and the Mayor's Office to look at what are the

          6  important barometers for us to understand in our

          7  oversight responsibilities that make sense to

          8  evaluate.

          9                 So, we've put together some questions

         10  I think in trying to understand that. I'm not sure

         11  we will cover all of them so we may want to have

         12  another hearing at another time on some of them

         13  because there's a great amount of detail I see that

         14  Council staff has come up with in a lot of different

         15  areas. I'm not sure we want to try to cover all of

         16  them today, but I was, as we all are trying to

         17  learn, trying to understand this enforcement

         18  violation report that was given to us just a couple

         19  of days ago, and you referred to that, and I think

         20  you also, on page five you're talking about working

         21  with several different groups, because there are

         22  people who never learn what we mean what we say, the

         23  unit has become a source of revenue.

         24                 Frankly, I'm not even sure what all

         25  the violations are, or that are certainly the most
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          2  egregious, if you could identify them for us, that

          3  would be useful.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Well, there are a

          5  number of violations that --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And I'm sorry, but

          7  I presume we're talking about trade waste, right?

          8                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Because this

         10  doesn't say. It just says enforcement violation

         11  report, it doesn't say of what.

         12                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: These are just

         13  trade waste violations.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: These have been

         16  violations that have been issued since September of

         17  2002, and for the most part they have been the

         18  results of the Trade Waste Enforcement Unit that we

         19  recently created.

         20                 The violations that we take most

         21  seriously are really those involving unlicensed

         22  activity, and those are of great concern to us

         23  because, number one, the companies whom you want

         24  operating are those that have been vetted by the

         25  Commission staff, so that we know that the owners,
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          2  the principals, the key employees are people who

          3  have their requisite good character, honesty and

          4  integrity to enter into this industry.

          5                 We also are concerned about the

          6  trucks that they're operating, and we want to make

          7  sure that those trucks have the appropriate, have

          8  gone through the appropriate inspections.

          9                 We want to make sure that --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Those inspections

         11  are done by DOT?

         12                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: The inspections

         13  are ultimately, we make sure that the trucks have

         14  all the proper credentials, that the registrations

         15  are in order. Trucks are also -- we make sure that

         16  the insurance is in place, the Department of

         17  Sanitation has also conducted its inspection, we

         18  also want to make sure that the trucks display the

         19  appropriate information, so that customers know

         20  exactly who it is that they're dealing with.

         21                 There are also violations, among the

         22  other violations that concern us, the disclosure of

         23  who the key employees are. I just want to make sure

         24  that the people who are operating the company have

         25  the requisite, good character, honest and integrity.
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          2                 There are violations concerning

          3  material changes, if you've changed managers,

          4  operators, that's also critical to us.

          5                 There's also the supplying to us of

          6  books and records which we monitor, so there's a

          7  whole range of violations that we take quite

          8  seriously and have begun issuing violations for

          9  failure to comply with those Commission regulations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And these

         11  violations, you're listing the ones that you think

         12  are the most extreme, and particularly that you're

         13  operating, picking up trash essentially without

         14  being licensed?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: That is among the

         16  violations that we've issued, and that perhaps is

         17  the most serious offense, when you have carters

         18  going out there who are not licensed, whom the

         19  Commission does not know about, and are operating

         20  trucks and stealing customers from those companies

         21  that have gone through the expense of being licensed

         22  and complying with our rules and regulations.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, how much is one

         24  of these fines? It says here that since September,

         25  you've issued $142,000 worth of fines, is there a
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          2  standard? Do you set the fine? Is there a scale?

          3                 So, somebody reports that there's an

          4  unlicensed carter, and some of your investigators

          5  find this person, and then, so what is the fine for

          6  that?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: We have a scale,

          8  but we also take into consideration is the severity

          9  of the offense and for how long the illegal conduct

         10  has been going on.

         11                 So, obviously if the illegal activity

         12  has been going on for an extended period of time,

         13  that offender will find themselves subjected to a

         14  greater amount in terms of fines that they would owe

         15  to the Commission.

         16                 So, we do have a scale, but we also

         17  take into consideration whether this is a first-time

         18  offense, has this company been previously cited or

         19  warned, just how extreme the violation - so, there

         20  are a number of factors that are taken into

         21  consideration.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, can somebody on

         23  your staff tell me how many violations are there in

         24  September that have added up to $142,000? I see, I'm

         25  sorry, it's right here.
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          2                 So, why are there -- what is the

          3  difference between September and October? I mean,

          4  you've got a big difference here.

          5                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes, we had a --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You had them all in

          7  compliance.

          8                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: There was one

          9  company in September who agreed to settle a fine or

         10  whose case upon adjudication agreed to pay a fine of

         11  $100,000. So, we had, as I said, how fines are

         12  levied, or the amount that they're settled at

         13  depends a great deal on the nature and the severity

         14  of the offense. I forget which company we're talking

         15  about here, but there was a company whose conduct

         16  was so egregious where we had to levy a heavy

         17  penalty and they agreed to pay a $100,000 fine which

         18  they are paying over time. So that's the difference

         19  why you see September stands out in contrast to

         20  October and November.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When you last

         22  testified and you were just speaking about it, there

         23  was the famous, or infamous I think is what they

         24  were called in your testimony, 62 applications, and

         25  in your testimony you say you work through a lot of
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          2  them; how many are now outstanding?

          3                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: They have all

          4  been resolved. The status of the 62 companies have

          5  been resolved.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, in other words,

          7  it's not a question of people are acting, doing this

          8  work unlicensed because they don't want to wait any

          9  longer?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: That's correct.

         11                 With respect to the 62 companies,

         12  they have been resolved either by a denial of their

         13  license, there may have been a grant with a

         14  monitorship, or they may have been forced to sell to

         15  a reputable licensee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So there's no

         17  applications outstanding at the moment?

         18                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: There may be

         19  applications that are outstanding.

         20                 There are no grandfathered

         21  applications outstanding.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         23                 You know, we had a hearing and I

         24  think I had mentioned to Council Member McMahon,

         25  maybe because of the change of the date, he's not
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          2  able to join us, but he certainly was very concerned

          3  about the whole issue of the rate cap, and I had

          4  spoken with you some time sometime back, at our

          5  September 26th hearing, you said that they were

          6  actively, this is a quote, "considering what steps

          7  to take, vis-a-vis the rate cap." But I don't see

          8  anything in your testimony, now four months later,

          9  so could you give us an idea of what's been

         10  accomplished? I think we all believe, and I remember

         11  that Council Member Barron was with us, and had some

         12  questions about it, that this is a very real issue

         13  about what it is that they're able to charge and the

         14  difficulties that we were having. It's somewhat

         15  surprising to me now that we've got other people in

         16  the business, somebody is finding a way to make

         17  money, but where are we in terms of reevaluating the

         18  rate cap?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: With respect to

         20  the rate cap, we are still continuing to very

         21  carefully study the issue, and we have been in

         22  serious dialogue and consultations with the carting

         23  industry as well as various sectors within the

         24  customer community, the people who will actually be

         25  charged for those services, and the reason why the
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          2  process is taking as long as it is, is we want to

          3  make sure that at the end of the day we get input

          4  from everyone who is going to be affected by

          5  whatever decision we make, and that means the input

          6  of the carting industry which itself is not a

          7  homogenous group. If there are large companies,

          8  medium-sized companies, small-sized companies, and

          9  they all have a different perspective on this issue,

         10  and there are 200,000 businesses in the City of New

         11  York that rely on carting services, and various

         12  business react and have different views on the

         13  carting industry, and that is one of the reasons why

         14  I have formulated the Trade Waste Advisory

         15  Committee, to ensure that we get input, perspective

         16  from everyone who will ultimately be affected by

         17  whatever decision is made, and at the end of the day

         18  we want to make sure that we get this right. We want

         19  to make sure that we adhere to Local Law 42, which

         20  says that, or mandates that rates should be set so

         21  as to allow carters to make a profit or to make a

         22  living but at the same time ensuring that customers

         23  are not going to be overcharged for the service. It

         24  is a balancing act, and it is one that we're

         25  struggling with and we're hoping to come to some
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          2  resolution in the near future.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you put a

          4  time frame on the near future for me?

          5                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: I wish I could,

          6  but my skills as a prognosticator have been

          7  seriously challenged over the years.

          8                 I'm going to shy away from that, but

          9  I give you my assurance that both myself, my staff

         10  are working tirelessly on this matter and we

         11  understand the urgency of trying to come to some

         12  resolution soon.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I have no doubt of

         14  your staff and their involvement with ours has been

         15  an open dialogue.

         16                 It seems to me, frankly, that the

         17  Administration hasn't really wanted to prioritize

         18  this. I know there are a lot of things that we're

         19  doing in a lot of different arenas, but it seems to

         20  me that with all due respect to you, I don't know if

         21  you've made recommendations to the Deputy Mayors or

         22  to the Mayor, but at least it appears to me that it

         23  may not -- I don't want to say straight forward,

         24  because you've indicated that there are a lot of

         25  issues in here, but one of the suggestions that was
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          2  made, and, in fact, you talked about it, was the

          3  possibility of just getting rid of the cap, and see

          4  where the market sets itself.

          5                 That to me doesn't sound like a bad

          6  idea. Instead of, you know, agitating over what rate

          7  to set, why don't we let the market sort of dictate

          8  that to us and then if we see that, you know,

          9  there's, quote, I don't know how you're supposed to

         10  say politely price fixing -- how do you say that

         11  politely, Charles?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You said it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         14                 Then we could come back and look at

         15  it. But is that not an idea that has some merit?

         16                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: I think that it

         17  is one of the approaches that we should certainly

         18  take a look at.

         19                 There are a number of approaches that

         20  I think are viable and worth considering, and I

         21  think that should be one that should be on the table

         22  and should be given consideration.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I will say

         24  this, the other question, and then I want to --

         25  actually, I'm going to hold that comment on that
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          2  issue and Council Member Barron has a couple,

          3  because I want to wrap up this trade waste before we

          4  move into some other indicators here.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chair.

          7                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          8                 You know, there's a lot of cash in

          9  hauling trash. As a matter of fact, Waste

         10  Management, Inc., and USA Waste merged, and their

         11  attempt to form some kind of monopoly over the

         12  carting industry has been a real concern of mine,

         13  particularly in East New York, in the area I come

         14  from where we're concerned about the organized crime

         15  and its participation in this business.

         16                 The Chairman asked a lot of my

         17  questions, but I wanted to ask you how would you

         18  provide some monitoring over a serious issue in my

         19  district?

         20                 They had the Department of Sanitation

         21  Police who would go around and really monitor a lot

         22  of illegal dumping, and then we're finding that all

         23  of a sudden, when certain cartering businesses

         24  wanted to get more business in the area, then the

         25  police were gone and the illegal dumping escalating
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          2  and the monitoring of that has been a real problem.

          3                 And in addition to that, some

          4  comments on that, and then there's a lot of

          5  businesses in our community that may lose cartering

          6  services; what do you do with those businesses who

          7  for some reason one way or another, pricing, or they

          8  lose cartering services and it endangers their

          9  business, and then others who have to compete with

         10  other cartering services and the regulations seem to

         11  not give people an even hand.

         12                 But I'm really concerned about the

         13  illegal dumping and some of the policing of that.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: With respect to

         15  illegal dumping, that is something that if private

         16  carters are engaged in dumping in sites or locations

         17  that are not licensed transfer stations, transfer

         18  stations licensed by the Department of Sanitation,

         19  that is something that we would take very seriously.

         20                 We have from time to time

         21  investigated along with the State Department of

         22  Environmental Conservation, they have agents who

         23  have primary jurisdiction over environmental

         24  violations that from time to time we have joined up

         25  with them and a local prosecutor to investigate
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          2  these violations, and criminal cases have been

          3  commenced.

          4                 So, if you or any member of your

          5  staff wants to provide us with that information, we

          6  have a very vigorous enforcement unit, that really

          7  jumps on these kinds of complaints very quickly, so

          8  if you have that information, I would welcome it,

          9  because that's what we're here to do. We're here to

         10  ensure that that kind of activity does not take

         11  place, and as I said, to work with our partners in

         12  the law enforcement community, whether it's state,

         13  as I said, the State Department of Environmental

         14  Conservation, or the local prosecutor, to bring that

         15  kind of activity to a halt and to hold those who are

         16  engaged in this kind of conduct responsible.

         17                 So, if you have that information, I

         18  sincerely welcome it, we can be proactive and we can

         19  be aggressive.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm really

         21  glad to hear you say that, because it's a serious

         22  problem, and even more serious than actual illegal

         23  dumping.

         24                 It's my concern that the Department

         25  of Sanitation relieved a lot of the Sanitation
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          2  police in that area, knowing that illegal dumping

          3  was occurring, and who would that benefit, who

          4  benefits from not being held accountable for illegal

          5  dumping.

          6                 And I'm very concerned, I met with

          7  some of the former housing or Sanitation police from

          8  my area, who I notice when they were on the case it

          9  was less dumping, then all of a sudden they get

         10  taken off the case and it increases and it's

         11  benefitting somebody and I'm very, very concerned

         12  about that kind of connection, but we'll provide you

         13  with the information and have further discussion.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Right.

         15                 Now, with respect to your second

         16  question about customers losing, businesses losing

         17  the services of carters, we have gotten that

         18  information from time to time and I can tell you

         19  that my staff is working, has worked very diligently

         20  to ensure that businesses that get dropped, we help

         21  them identify another carter to come in and to

         22  continue providing the service, and it doesn't

         23  happen often but one complaint is one too many, and

         24  when they do come in, I think we have a pretty

         25  dedicated staff who are very expert at responding to
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          2  businesses that lose carting services and helping

          3  them identify a substitute carter, and if there's an

          4  emergency situation, we have the power and have

          5  exercised the power to order a company to continue

          6  providing service to ensure that that business

          7  disruption is minimized.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Let me ask you

          9  this: I just want to get a clearer understanding.

         10  The Department of Sanitation, they have their

         11  enforcement; do you also have an enforcement

         12  capability?

         13                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes. Our

         14  enforcement capability operates on two tracks. We

         15  have detectives from the New York City Police

         16  Department who pursue criminal allegations, develop

         17  criminal cases, working with closely with both the

         18  local and the federal prosecutors.

         19                 Then we established our Trade Waste

         20  Enforcement Unit that focuses and targets carters

         21  who are engaged in conduct that's in violation of

         22  our rules and regulations.

         23                 So, anything that a carter is doing

         24  or engaged in that does not adhere, does not comply

         25  with our rules and regulations could find themselves
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          2  being violated, issued a violation and having to pay

          3  a fine, and those carters that may be engaged in

          4  criminal conduct will find themselves the target of

          5  our detectives and part of a criminal investigation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Let me ask you

          7  this: For us --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

          9  Barron, I'm sorry. I got caught up in some

         10  administrative stuff, so I apologize.

         11                 So, you have your own -- I know he

         12  was asking about the relationship and I know I

         13  missed the first part of the answer, frankly,

         14  because we're trying to find my colleague, I might

         15  need your police force and your detective to round

         16  up my colleagues here.

         17                 You said that the Department of

         18  Sanitation does most of that; is that what you said?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: No, what I said

         20  was that our enforcement capability, our enforcement

         21  initiatives operate on two tracks. There's the

         22  criminal side, that work is undertaken by the

         23  detectives who are assigned to us from the Police

         24  Department, and they focus and target criminal

         25  activity that carters may be engaged.
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          2                 And we have our Trade Waste

          3  Enforcement Unit, which we established in July of

          4  this year, and that's a team of inspectors who focus

          5  their attention on carting companies who may not

          6  necessarily be involved in criminal conduct, but are

          7  violating our rules and regulations.

          8                 So, if there's unlicensed activity,

          9  that company would more than likely be targeted by

         10  our Trade Waste Enforcement Unit.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just wanted

         12  to ask a last question.

         13                 So your Trade Waste Enforcement Unit,

         14  do they aggressively go out and monitor, or do you

         15  have to hear a complaint? Like sometimes the

         16  Department of Sanitation, they'll have the police

         17  actually out there looking for these violations or

         18  criminal acts? Or do you have to hear complaints and

         19  they investigate it, or do they actually go out in

         20  areas and --

         21                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: No, our approach

         22  is a very aggressive approach. Our people are out

         23  there, obviously complaints come to us, and we

         24  follow up on those complaints, but the purpose of

         25  having created this unit is so that they have a
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          2  Director whom they report to who holds them

          3  accountable, I hold that director accountable, and

          4  their mandate is to go out there and make sure that

          5  private carting companies, those who have been

          6  licensed are complying with the rules and

          7  regulations as established by the Commission, and to

          8  the extent that we hear complaints from a licensed

          9  company, or from a member of the community, or from

         10  a customer, we aggressively pursue those complaints

         11  that come in.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How many people are

         15  working in your agency right now on this issue?

         16                 I guess your Business Integrity

         17  Commission has a lot of, there's different areas

         18  that we're talking about, let's start off, how many

         19  staff people are in that agency?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: The agency is 68

         21  exclusive of the detectives that are assigned to us

         22  from the New York City Police Department. So, on our

         23  payroll, on Business Integrity Commission payroll is

         24  a staff of 68. If you add to that, about 25 to 30

         25  detectives at any one time who are assigned to us
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          2  from the New York City Police Department, in total

          3  you're talking about close to 90 people.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But those

          5  detectives and staff, can you tell me, out of those

          6  68, how many are working on the Trade Waste?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Well, everyone

          8  works. We're a consolidated agency now, so with the

          9  exception of the inspectors assigned to the markets,

         10  all of our staff are working on all issues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see, the gambling

         12  and the markets?

         13                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes. Just to give

         14  you an example, our licensing unit, which really

         15  came over, which is really part of the old Trade

         16  Waste Commission, that licensing unit now will

         17  process the applications of all of the businesses or

         18  industries that we regulate, carting industry,

         19  public wholesale markets, and shipboard gambling

         20  applications that may come in.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you expect in

         22  your agency that at the end of the fiscal year that

         23  we will have, in fact, brought in more revenue than

         24  the agency, the cost to the City to run the agency?

         25                 In other words, what is your budget
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          2  now, and you anticipate being a money-maker for the

          3  City?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: The total budget

          5  for the agency is about $5 million, and we may pick

          6  up the cost of cars, we may pick up some OTPS stuff,

          7  so the Police Department picks up the bulk of it,

          8  all of the salaries, we may be picking up some

          9  incidental costs.

         10                 Our target revenues for this year is

         11  I believe about $1.4 million. Right now we are on

         12  track five months into the fiscal year, to surpass

         13  that target. So, I'm feeling pretty good about where

         14  we are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is that 1.6

         16  million, did you say?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Our target is

         18  $1.4 million.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: In for the fiscal

         20  year?

         21                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: For the fiscal

         22  year. And right now we are more than halfway there.

         23  So, I feel pretty good about the direction in which

         24  we're moving and I am confident that we will meet or

         25  surpass our target for the school year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Let us not assume,

          3  then, that the Business Integrity Commission is

          4  actually going to bring in more revenue than is the

          5  cost of operating a unit?

          6                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: I don't believe

          7  that the amount of fines and the amount that is

          8  charged in licensing fees or applications will

          9  exceed what our budget is. I don't see that, no.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, before I ask

         11  a few questions about the shipboard gambling, I just

         12  want to take a moment to welcome Junior High School

         13  216 from Fresh Meadow in Queens.

         14                 Welcome, all of you. What are you

         15  studying today?

         16                 What is it now?

         17                 New York City history. Well, this is

         18  the Consumer Affairs Committee, and this is

         19  Commissioner Maldonado, who is testifying that's in

         20  charge of the Business Integrity Commission. We want

         21  to make sure that businesses operate in an above

         22  board manner. And I know that you have your

         23  Assistant Principal Sue Scalfione? Is that you?

         24                 MS. SCALFIONE: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And Ms. Braverman
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          2  is here, right?

          3                 MS. BRAVERMAN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, welcome here to

          5  the City Council.

          6                 Welcome. And every one of you knows

          7  who your City Councilperson is, I'm sure? You don't

          8  want me to put you on the spot do you? Well, before

          9  you leave make sure you -- because I think you

         10  probably worked out the tour with Jim Gennaro,

         11  right? That's where the school is, right?

         12                 So, welcome. Nice to see you all.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And I'd just

         14  like to say to you, since you're studying New York

         15  City history, I'm going to be the second

         16  African-American Mayor in New York City, so it's

         17  good that you came at this time.

         18                 And how old are most of you?

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         20  AUDIENCE: Thirteen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thirteen?

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         23  AUDIENCE: Fourteen.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Fourteen.

         25                 Okay, well, it's going to take me
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          2  about six, seven years to get there, but I will need

          3  your vote in the future, and if you want to hear

          4  anymore about my resume and why I'm qualified, I'll

          5  be available at any time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

          7  Barron is going to be the Mayor about the same time

          8  that Sharpton is the President. So, it will be a

          9  one/two punch.

         10                 Thank you. And you don't know how

         11  much I enjoy Council Member Barron certainly on this

         12  Committee, but in the Council with us, he's very

         13  provocative around issues that need to have that

         14  provocation. So, I thank you for as much of the work

         15  that you're doing.

         16                 In the shipboard gambling area, and

         17  I'm just going to read the question that's been put

         18  here, Commissioner, rather than try to frame it in

         19  my own language.

         20                 Since you began as Chairman, what

         21  steps have you taken to improve the shipboard

         22  gambling industry?

         23                 And in your view, what is the three

         24  largest problems facing this industry?

         25                 I see we're getting a chuckle from
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          2  your staff.

          3                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Right now,

          4  Chairman, the shipboard gambling industry is a

          5  dormant industry, it really is non-existent as we

          6  speak.

          7                 For a period of time we had one

          8  gambling ship operating out of Sheepshead Bay,

          9  Casino New York. They are no longer operating. I

         10  believe that they had some operational issues, maybe

         11  some financial issues, suffice it to say that they

         12  have ceased to operate, and the City has not, or at

         13  least since I've assumed the new reins of the

         14  agency, we have not received any new applications

         15  from any groups or entities interested in engaging

         16  in shipboard gambling in the City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So to your

         18  knowledge, there's nobody out there doing this at

         19  the moment?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: No. Right now

         21  there is no one doing it, correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that saves us

         23  a whole lot of questions, then, doesn't it?

         24                 And no applications either, right?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: No applications,
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          4                 In the Fulton Fish Market, there had

          5  been obviously, a lot of public discussion about

          6  cleaning that up, could you just give me a few

          7  minutes of what you think, where we're at with that?

          8  How is that operating down there and your evaluation

          9  and what are the ongoing problems that we have?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: The Fulton Fish

         11  Market is operating well. I think there are no

         12  significant problems to speak of. I think the

         13  Department of Small Business Services, in

         14  conjunction with the Department of Investigation,

         15  which we're both responsible for overseeing and

         16  regulating the Fulton Fish Market did a pretty good

         17  job, more than that, did a superb job in rooting out

         18  organized crime out of the Fulton Fish Market.

         19                 We as the successor agency are

         20  looking to streamline the application process. We

         21  are focusing on standardizing applications.

         22                 We're reviewing some of the

         23  operations, some of the administrative tasks, but I

         24  would say that the market is running smoothly, as

         25  you probably know there is a plan to move the Fulton
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          2  Fish Market from its current site up to the Hunts

          3  Point Terminal Market. That is a project that is

          4  being undertaken by EDC.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is that going to be

          6  a reality?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: I believe it is.

          8  I would think one would have to confer with EDC as

          9  to what the timetable is.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, if EDC says

         11  so, do they have to move?

         12                 I mean, that's City-owned land that

         13  they're on right now?

         14                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, they just had

         16  their lease taken away?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: I'm not sure how

         18  that transpired. My understanding is that EDC has

         19  already -- they've broken ground at the Hunt's Point

         20  Terminal Market for the new fish market, and the

         21  wholesalers have agreed and understand that they

         22  will be operating out of that site.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Tell me more about

         24  the other public markets?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: The other public
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          2  markets are yet to be regulated. And by that I mean

          3  we have not begun the process of registering the

          4  business that are operating out of those markets. We

          5  want to get through the Hunt's Point Produce Market

          6  through the renewal process of existing businesses.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's going on

          8  now?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: That's going on

         10  now.

         11                 The renewal process for the

         12  businesses that are operating out of the Fulton Fish

         13  Market, once those two initiatives are completed,

         14  our plan is to then move into the Hunt's Point Meat

         15  Market, then we'll sit down with EDC and sort of

         16  formulate a plan for which markets we will tackle

         17  next.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, in other words,

         19  we have not identified or had identified organized

         20  crime activity. We have not identified issues with

         21  organized crime in any of these other markets?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Well, let me be

         23  clear. The fact that we have not registered,

         24  although we have not yet registered the businesses

         25  that are operating in the other markets, we do have
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          2  a presence. We have visited those markets, we have

          3  consulted with both the precincts, Police Department

          4  precincts, where those markets operate from. We have

          5  met with and talked to the local DAs of the borough

          6  where those markets are operating to let them know

          7  we are the Business Integrity Commission, at some

          8  point we will be regulating these businesses, and to

          9  the extent that you are aware of problems that need

         10  to be addressed, we want to work cooperatively, and

         11  I can tell you that there are some investigations,

         12  at least one or two investigations where one of

         13  those markets is on our radar screen.

         14                 So, we have not registered those

         15  businesses yet, but we do have a presence.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         17                 I also want to recognize and

         18  acknowledge that we have been joined by Council

         19  Member Davis from Brooklyn here.

         20                 Do either of my colleagues have

         21  questions for the Commissioner? Council Member

         22  Davis?

         23                 Thank you. I think that I've got 12

         24  pages of questions that our staff, because they're

         25  so effective at what they do, have put together, but
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          2  I think you pretty much answered most of them.

          3                 I am, as the Chair of this Committee,

          4  very concerned about this issue of the trade waste,

          5  and think that this needs to get higher on the radar

          6  screen with some resolution, and it might very well

          7  be, as I had suggested earlier, not because I

          8  suggested it, but just as an alternative, rather

          9  than struggling that we take the cap off and try

         10  that for six months to see what happens.

         11                 And I appreciate that you're working

         12  with a group of all of the stakeholders in this, but

         13  I would just, I want to say to you that certainly as

         14  we move into the budget hearings, this is going to

         15  be a subject that we're going to be asking about

         16  repeatedly, and I think the next time we have this

         17  round of discussions, we would really want to know

         18  why it is taking this long, and at what point is

         19  there an impasse of coming up with some proper

         20  resolution to this, because it's something that was

         21  put on the table by all sides, by the industry, by

         22  the carters as well as the restaurants and others,

         23  it's something that needed to be resolved and unless

         24  somebody could tell me that all of a sudden it's not

         25  a problem anymore, I'd like to get that taken care
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          2  of.

          3                 So, I would appreciate certainly, I

          4  know you're working on it, that we put some emphasis

          5  on finding a way to get this issue off of the table.

          6                 Thank you very much for you being

          7  here today. It's always a pleasure working with you.

          8                 CHAIRMAN MALDONADO: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 Thank you, Council members.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         12                 We are expecting Council Member

         13  Koppell I know to be joining us very shortly. I'm

         14  reluctant to let any of you leave the room, my

         15  colleagues, but we are going to be in recess for ten

         16  minutes, and then we'll come back, because we do

         17  have to vote on the sidewalk cafe legislation,

         18  Intro. No. 294, the Subcommittee, Land Use

         19  Subcommittee and the Land Use Committee both voted

         20  on this bill. It needs both that Committee as well

         21  as this Committee to move it forward and we are

         22  wanting to bring it to the full Council on next

         23  week, so if you both would indulge us for ten

         24  minutes, we will lasso somebody, the counsel on this

         25  Committee, so we can get this done, all right? We
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          2  will be back at 11:40. Thank you.

          3                 (Recess taken.)

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, the Committee

          5  is back in session, at the request of Council Member

          6  Koppell. We're just having a good time here, and he

          7  wants to get back to business. We are back in

          8  session and I wanted to say we appreciate that

          9  Council Member Koppell was here early and has made a

         10  second appearance today on this issue.

         11                 So, would the clerk please call the

         12  roll on Intro. No. 294, commonly known as the

         13  Sidewalk Cafe Legislation?

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Davis.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Permission to

         20  explain my vote?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: As the

         23  Councilman of the 35th Councilmatic District, which

         24  covers Crown Heights, Prospect Heights, Clinton Hill

         25  and Ft. Green, in particular Clinton Hill, Ft. Green
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          2  and Prospect Heights as well, it is good to see that

          3  the City Council is moving forward on legislation

          4  that would do away with so much red tape, and it's

          5  important that we are on the forefront standing up

          6  for small businesses and businesses who are out

          7  there, and summertime is coming, even though right

          8  now it's freezing outside, but summertime is en

          9  route, so sidewalk cafes are something that is very

         10  important in my Councilmanic District, so I

         11  wholeheartedly vote aye.

         12                 Thank you so much.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         15  just if I may explain my vote, please?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         18  first of all, thank you for your courtesy, I'm sorry

         19  I had to leave after I was here earlier, and I'm

         20  glad I could get back to vote.

         21                 As you know, in the hearings on this

         22  bill, or the hearing on this bill I expressed some

         23  concern about the fees issue, and it's my

         24  understanding that the fees actually, except for the

         25  initial license fee, are going to be set by Rules,
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          2  not by the Council. Which actually I think may make

          3  some considerable sense because there's some

          4  flexibility there, and I simply would like to put on

          5  the record and I know that the Commissioner has

          6  represented here that we should examine the reaction

          7  of the sidewalk cafe operators to the new fees.

          8                 It may well be that for some the fees

          9  are still a great bargain, and I'm sure that's true.

         10  But it may also be that in some outlying

         11  neighborhoods, including in my district, marginal

         12  operations that don't make a lot of money may find

         13  the new fees actually more than the old fees, it's

         14  hard to tell exactly from a fee schedule and I would

         15  urge the Commissioner to study whether people are

         16  being dissuaded from opening the cafes by the fees,

         17  because while I think the City should certainly earn

         18  money where it can, I like sidewalk cafes, I think

         19  they add to the ambiance of the neighborhood,

         20  they're a good thing enjoyed by people during the

         21  warmer weather, and I wouldn't want to feel that

         22  people are not opening these because the fees the

         23  City is charging are too large.

         24                 So, with the hope that the

         25  Commissioner will examine the fees as a new program
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          2  is implemented, I vote aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

          5  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          6  abstentions, the item is adopted.

          7                 Council Members, please sign the

          8  Committee report.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 We are going to monitor this very

         12  carefully in this Committee.

         13                 I think this is a significant piece

         14  of legislation that I assume is going to pass in the

         15  full Council next week. It affects everybody, all

         16  communities in the City. We are trying to make

         17  government, streamline it and make the process work,

         18  but I think, Council Member Koppell, you raised a

         19  lot of good issues, as have others during the

         20  hearing.

         21                 So, you know, the Council has agreed

         22  to be responsive and work with the Administration on

         23  this, but we are not going to abdicate our oversight

         24  irrespective of who sets the fees, and, you know,

         25  many of us I know are in neighborhoods where we see

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  the restaurateurs making a lot of money and it

          3  doesn't make any sense to me that the City in this

          4  fiscal time or stress is not getting its fair share

          5  of that while the private market is benefitting.

          6                 So, there does need to be reflection

          7  on where these cafes are. I know certainly in East

          8  Harlem we would like to see a single sidewalk cafe

          9  somewhere, and we don't want to make the prices

         10  prohibitive. But I think this is a great step

         11  forward in this process and I'm looking forward to

         12  examining it at the end of the summer, see where

         13  we're at.

         14                 Thank you all very much. The hearing

         15  is adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 11:53 a.m.)
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